
 

ROCKFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
March 10, 2025 - 5:30 PM 

Agenda 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOGNITION 
1. Middle School Student of the Month 

 
ACTION ITEMS – CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Minutes from the February 10, 2025, meeting 
2. Presentation of Bills in the amount of $10,441,799.19 
3. Boys Varsity Baseball Donation of $1K 
4. Spring Coaches 
5. Retirements 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Outdoor Learning Proposal 
2. Middle School Furniture 
3. River Valley Grad Requirements 
4. Draft Calendar 
5. District Workstation Upgrade 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

1. Elementary Update 
 
 

REPORTS 

1. Student Representative Report 
2. Collaborative Reports 
3. Committee Reports 

 
RECOGNITION OF VISITORS AND HEARING OF PEOPLE PRESENT 

SUPERINTENDENT REMARKS 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

Accommodations: 

Any person with a disability who needs accommodation for participation in these meetings 
should contact the Superintendent’s Office at 616.863.6557, at least five days in advance of the 
meeting. 



Meeting Minutes – Regular Meeting 
February 10, 2025 

Date I time Monday-February 10, 2025 I 5:30 p.m. 
Location Administration Boardroom 

Meeting called to order with a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance by President Folsom 

In Attendance 

Board of Education: Tricia Anderson, Jarrod Folsom, Barbara Helms, Jake Himmelspach, Christie Ramsey, 
Andrea Jacobson 
Regrets: Kelley Freridge 

Administration: Dr. Steve Matthews, Mike Ramm, Allison Clements, Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Jodi 
Nester. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Motion to approve agenda by Christie Ramsey with support by Andrea Jacobson. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

Recognition 
1. Middle School Student of the Month – A video was played honoring the Middle School

Students of the month.

Consent Agenda 

Motion to approve by Jake Himmelspach with support by Christie Ramsey. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

1. Minutes from the January 13, 2025 Regular Meeting
2. Minutes from the February 3, 2025 Closed Session Meeting
3. Salary Schedules – Nursing/Child Care
4. Presentation of bills in the amount of $9,395,846.73.
5. Petition to strike delinquent taxes

New Business 

1. Schools of Choice Resolutions

• Opt out of Section 105

• Motion to approve by Andrea Jacobson with support by Christie
Ramsey.  Passed unanimously by roll call vote.

• Opt into Section 105C



 
• Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Tricia 

Anderson.  Passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

• Opt into Kent Collaborative ISD Schools of Choice Program 

• Motion to approve by Jake Himmelspach with support by Tricia 
Anderson.  Passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

 

2. Bus Purchase –  Allison Clements explained that as part of the 2019 bond we replace 
part of our bus fleet yearly.  The recommendation is to replace seven buses through 
Hoekstra equipment.  Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Andrea 
Jacobson.  Motion carried unanimously. 

3. Abatement Bid Summary.   Allison Clements introduced Shawn Hayward who 
explained the bids and asked for approval using proceeds from the 2019 bond.  
Motion to approve by Tricia Anderson with support by Barb Helms.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

4. Summer 2025 Paving Bid – Allison Clements introduced Jaren Gauss who explained 
the repaving projects that will be done during the summer at Parkside elementary.  
There will also be repaving done at the Freshman Center and some repaving will be 
done at Rockford High School.  Motion to approve by Andrea Jacobson with support 
by Christie Ramsey.  Motion carried unanimously. 

5. Network Switches Bid Summary – Allison Clements introduced Chris Meuser who 
explained the need for switch installation.  Motion to approve by Tricia Anderson 
with support by Christie Ramsey.  Motion carried unanimously. 

6. Classroom Furniture – Mike Ramm brought a bid for classroom furniture for 
Roguewood Elementary for approval.  Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with 
support by Jarrod Folsom.  Motion carried unanimously.  Mike Ramm also brought a 
bid to the board for approval for core classroom furniture for ERMS and NRMS.  
Motion to approve by Jake Himmelspach with support by Andrea Jacobson.  Motion 
carried unanimously.   

 
Old Business 

 
1. Policy Update – Second Reading.  Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford presented a proposal for a 

change to policy 2410.  Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Jarrod 
Folsom.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Reports 
 

1. Student Representative Report 
Student Representative to the Board, Brookyln Schmucher updated the board regarding events at the 
Secondary Level.  She talked about Candy Grams, many clubs at the HS spotlighting DECA.   

2. Collaborative Reports 
Teya Cotter, Cannonsburg Elementary Principal updated the board on events happening at the 



 
Elementary level. 

Jenny Thompson from River Valley Academy gave a presentation about things happening at the 
Secondary Level.   

3. Committee Reports – Tricia Anderson talked about the Building and Site committee meeting.  
Everything they met about has been presented at the meeting tonight.  Christie Ramsey said 
the Curriculum committee met and discussed some exciting new Pilot programs coming soon.   

4. Elementary Update – Dr. Matthews presented a recommendation to the Board of Education 
that would change the status of Parkside Elementary.  This would not close the building but 
rather repurpose it allowing the district to service many families who have not been able to 
access pre-school programs in the past.  This proposal will be presented for a vote at the March 
10, 2025 meeting. 

5. My Ride K-12 – Director of Transportation Matt Puett talked about the software program that 
Rockford is using called My Ride K-12.  Parents are finding this app very useful for helping 
them with knowing when the bus is coming to pick up or drop off.  It sends a notification if a 
bus is running late and also allows the district to send notifications to all signed up to receive 
them. 
 

 
Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present – Public Comment 

 

Audience Participation.  No action taken.
 

 

Superintendent Remarks 
 
Dr. Matthews commented on the culture of Parkside and that the proposal is being brought forward 
because he believes it is in the best interest of the District.  He will be meeting with parents over the next 
month and he knows it is important to continue to listen to parents and the community.  It is important for 
us to continue to have this conversation.  Parkside is a wonderful place for kids but we believe that a more 
robust experience we be a positive experience for them.  Roguewood Elementary will continue to be both 
Spanish Immersion and General Education Classrooms.  We all want what is best for the District and the 
students in our care.  We are not hiding information.  We are defending lawsuits that we feel need to be 
defended for our students and staff.   He apologized for the emotion that this proposal has generated for 
families. 
Adjournment 

 

President Folsom adjourned the meeting at 7:32. 
 

 

Recording Secretary Secretary, Board of Education 



BOARD REPORT ON DISBURSEMENTS
    

  DATE:  2.3.25 3.3.25

PAYROLL

GENERAL FUND NET PAYROLL 17 & 18 3,426,987.48
FOOD SERVICE 17 & 18 101,534.37
ATHLETIC FUND 17 & 18 167,781.57

TOTAL  ALL FUNDS 17 & 18 3,696,303.42

ALL FUNDS:
FEDERAL TAX          $ 360,442.95
SOCIAL SECURITY TAX-MEDICARE TAX $ 801,074.48
STATE TAX                $ 182,393.47
TOTAL $ 1,343,910.90

$ 5,040,214.32

BLUE CROSS INSURANCE $ 38,817.28
NVA/NATIONAL VISION   $
BC/BS (DENTAL) ADMIN FEES $ 75,142.33
MESSA (VSP/MED/ LIFE) $ 858,939.61
NATIONAL INSURANCE SVCS(L TERM DISABILITY $ 12,271.60
RETIREMENT PAYROLL  $ 2,407,445.43 $ 3,392,616.25

UTILITIES:
DTE ENERGY 44,220.26
CONSUMERS ENERGY $ 133,928.42
BP ENERGY (FORMERLY EDF ENERGY) BULK FUE$ 52,348.95 $ 230,497.63

BAL ON  GEN FUND CREDIT CARD # $ $ 0.00
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
MICHIGAN STATE-GYO 240,536.00
KENT-ISD MISC 51,621.09

$ 292,157.09
   

TOTAL OF ABOVE $ 8,955,485.29
BALANCE OF TOTAL GENERAL FUND 314,821.68
SINKING FUND REG CKS
SINKING FUND ACH CKS 0.00
SINKING FUND CREDIT CARD 0.00
2023 BOND REG CKS 156,676.08
2023 BOND ACH CKS 655,773.37
2023 BOND CREDIT CARD 24,737.20
GENERAL FUND ACH CKS
GENERAL FUND CREDIT CARD 334,305.57
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 10,441,799.19



Human Resources Department 
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent 

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

Memorandum 
To: Dr. Steven Matthews, Superintendent 
From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
Date:  March 10, 2025 
Subject:  2024-2025 HIGH SCHOOL EXTRA-DUTY SPRING COACHING RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 
SPORT POSITION NAME 

BASEBALL Head Coach Maxwell Crimp 
 JV Coach Steve Dengler 
 Freshman Coach Steve Fusee 
   
CREW (BOYS AND GIRLS) Boys Head Coach Emma Lassig 

 Girls Head Coach Emma Lassig 
 Boys Assistant Coach POSTED 
 Girls Assistant Coach Josie Dickerson 
   
GOLF (BOYS) Head Coach Christopher Schoder 

 JV Coach (A) Bill Crane 
 JV Coach (B) Christopher Behrendt 
   
LACROSSE (BOYS) Head Coach Stephen Pratt 

 JV (A) Coach Kevin Hieshetter 
 JV (B) Coach POSTED 
   
LACROSSE (GIRLS) Head Coach Mark Neumen 

 JV Coach Alyssa Davison 
   
RUGBY Head Coach Shawn Gent 

   
SOCCER (GIRLS) Head Coach Stuart Quackenbush 

 JV Coach Avery Milo 
 Freshman Coach POSTED 
   
SOFTBALL Head Coach Michal Huizenga 

 JV Coach Tim Erickson 
 Freshman Coach Marcie McCann 
   
   

 



 

 
SPORT POSITION NAME 

TENNIS (GIRLS) Head Coach Tom Huizing 
 JV Coach Hope Clancy 
   
TRACK Boys Head Coach Benjamin Watson 

 Girls Head Coach Sean O’Brien 
 Boys Assistant Coach Aaron Karsies 
 Girls Assistant Coach Alex Rosenau 
 Assistant Coach Dave Hodgkinson 
   
WATER POLO (GIRLS) Head Coach Katie Sizemore 

 JV Coach Jerrad Reickard 
 Assistant Coach Alexis Chisholm 

 



Human Resources Department
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent 

350 N. Main Street Rockford, MI 49341
Phone: 616.863.6554 Fax: 616.863.6355

www.rockfordschools.orgrg

Memorandum
To: Dr. Steven Matthews, Superintendent
From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources
Date: March 10, 2025
Subject: 2024-2025 MIDDLE SCHOOL EXTRA DUTY SPRING COACHING RECOMMENDATIONS

SPORT SCHOOL POSITION NAME 

TENNISS (GIRLS) East Middle Head Coach Amy Banfield

North Middle Head Coach Jami Dondit

TRACK East Middle Head Boys Coach Shayne Dove
Head Girls Coach Jodi Ramos
Assistant Coach Murphy Hodder
Assistant Coach Erin Barbeau

North Middle Head Boys Coach Joshua Miller
Head Girls Coach Emily Weinman
Assistant Coach Nicko’s Rosser
Assistant Coach Joe Trolla



Human Resources Department 
Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum 

To: Board of Education 

From: Dr. Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

Date: March 10, 2025 

Subject: Employee Retirements 

Marcy Mayle  Teacher   Freshman Center 01/01/2025 

Kim Andrews  Teacher   Roguewood  07/01/2025 

Jami Dondit  Teacher   North Middle  07/01/2025 

Elizabeth Switzer Teacher   Freshman Center 07/01/2025 

Cassidy Munger Teacher   Freshman Center 02/01/2025 

Rick Folcik  Teacher   High School  07/01/2025  

Tammy Avink  Teacher   Lakes   07/01/2025 

George Wilson  Teacher     High School  07/01/2025 

Jacqueline Decker Teacher   High School  07/01/2025 

Robinn VanFleet Teacher   Meadow Ridge 07/01/2025 

Todd Watson  Teacher   High School  07/01/2025 

Darlene Whitney Teacher   High School  07/01/2025 

Dawn Thorsen  Social Worker   Special Services 07/01/2025 



Instruction Department 
Mike Ramm, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street Rockford, MI 49341 

Phone: 616.863.6556 Fax: 616.866.1911 

Memorandum 

To: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent 

From: Mike Ramm, Assistant Superintendent of Instruction 

Date: March 5, 2025 

Subject: Outdoor Learning Program Expansion at Edgerton Trails Elementary 

 

Dr. Matthews: 

 

During the 2024-2025 school year, we established a district-wide elementary outdoor learning program.  Starting outdoor 

learning in our district aligned with RAMS XII Academic Excellence Goal 1.D.2 - Innovative Programming.  During the last seven 

months, students from all elementary schools have participated in a wide variety of outdoor learning experiences by traveling to 

Edgerton Trails or having Tara Dzirbowicz, the RPS Outdoor Learning Teacher, visit their building.  Looking toward the 

2025-2026 school year, there is opportunity to add to the district-wide programming by creating an outdoor learning classroom 

at Edgerton Trails for 4th grade students and, 4th and 5th grade for the 2026-2027 school year.  

 

If approved, next year’s outdoor learning-based 4th grade classroom would be led by a Rockford Public Schools teacher.  The 

curriculum expectations would follow the same content standards as their grade level peers in traditional classrooms. However, 

the instructional delivery would be enhanced by outdoor learning experiences and connections.  The program would be geared 

toward students who enjoy being outside and are inquisitive, self-directed learners.   
 

Students participating in this classroom based programming will be determined by an application process, including student 

interviews and an eventual lottery. The application submissions and student interviews will take place in April, with the lottery 

and acceptance letter communications taking place in May.   

 

The 4th grade outdoor learning students will remain in the program for fifth grade and transition to their geographically assigned 

middle school for 6th grade. Each year, we would add a new 4th grade class of students to Edgerton’s Outdoor Learning 

classroom.    

 

Enclosed, you will find additional information on the proposed classroom based Outdoor Learning Program, including an 

informational page to be posted on the website, the teacher referral form and the parent application.    

 

Thank you for your attention to this recommendation. Should you have any questions or require further clarification, please do 

not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

Mike Ramm 

www.rockfordschools.org 



ROCKFORD PUBLIC 
SCHOOLS

Outdoor Learning Programming



Current State of Outdoor Learning
Fall Winter Spring

DK, K, 
and 1

Sounds in Nature Thriving in the Winter or Animal 
Tracks

Taking Care of the Earth 

2 Cycles in Nature 
½ day Field Trip to E.T.

Thriving in the Winter or Animal 
Tracks

Cycles in Nature 
½ day Field Trip to E.T.

3 Animal Evidence and 
Classification

Thriving in the Winter or Animal 
Tracks

Building Observation 
Skills

4 Building Observation 
Skills for Zoo School

Thriving in the Winter or Animal 
Tracks

Geology

5 Observation Skills Native Species AND
Thriving in the Winter or Animal 
Tracks

Tree Planting AND
Stewardship Project with 
Community Partner

Individual teacher projects, grant writing, working with Explore students



Fall Outreach Programming Across the District



Second grade students from all 9 elementary schools 

came for a half day field trip to the Nature Center.

2ND GRADE FIELD TRIP EXPERIENCE



INTRO
DUCTI

ON

BACKG
RUND

THINK 
UNLIMITED 
MEMBERS

CENTRAL 
THEMES

PRESE
NTER

WORK 
PLAN (2024 

– 2025)

END OF 
PRESENTA

TION

GOALS AND 
ACTIONS 

(2024 – 2025)

2025/26 Expansion Proposal 
● Goal: by school year 26-27 have a Magnet Outdoor Education Program with a 4th and 5th 

grade. Students commit to participating for two years.   

● School Year 25-26- Year 1
○ One Class of 4th Grade students admitted into the program
○ 1 classroom teacher

● School Year 26-27-Year 2
○ Inaugural Class moves to 5th grade
○ New 4th grade classroom of students enters

● Continued Outdoor learning opportunities for all RPS elementary students
○ Field trips to Edgerton Trails Elementary 
○ Visits to the outdoor educations spaces at each elementary school



Proposed Program Structure
● Outdoor learning is more than learning curriculum outside. In an outdoor learning 

program students are collaborating and using PBL to meet standards.  

● Early programming: 
○ All District Math priority standards will be taught
○ All District ELA priority standards will be taught
○ Science and Social Studies: Project Based Learning determined by district 

representative, classroom teacher and administration. 



PROFILE OF A STUDENT

● Inquisitive 
● Genuine interest and experiences with the outdoors
● Can work both independently and collaboratively
● Has an intrinsic motivation when it comes to learning, school 

work and responsibility
● Positive attendance record
● Positive behaviors



PROFILE OF A TEACHER

● High level of outdoor experience and interest
● Familiar with RPS Curriculum, structure and expectations
● Professional expectations and realization that this program 

and structure do not fit the typical certified staff hours and 
planning time. 

● Commitment to outdoor programming and learning that 
includes prioritizing students being outside

● Flexibility 
● Ability to collaborate with similar programs and agencies 

outside of RPS



Next Steps Timeline

• March: Board Presentation
• April:  Post and Hire Certified Teacher for 4th Grade
• April: Application Process Opens
• April: Student Interviews
• May: Lottery
• May: Acceptance Letters

*Approximate Timeline
•



● Application Process:
Parent Recommendation
Current Teacher Recommendation
Student Interview

● Lottery-April
● Family communication in May/June

APPLICATION PROCESS



QUESTIONS



Rockford Outdoor Learning 
 
Rockford Public Schools is proud to announce a new outdoor learning program 
at Edgerton Trails Elementary for incoming 4th grade students in the district.  The 
program will include all RPS curriculum components while incorporating project 
based learning in an outdoor setting. This unique opportunity is for students that 
enjoy being outside, are inquisitive and self directed learners.  The program will 
be taught by a RPS certified staff member.   
 
 

Characteristics of an outdoor learning student 
 

Inquisitive  
Genuine interest and experiences with the outdoors 
Can work both independently and collaboratively 
Has an intrinsic motivation when it comes to learning, school work and 
responsibility 
Positive attendance record 
Positive behaviors 
 

Timeline 
April: Application Process Opens 

April: Student Interviews 

May: Lottery 

May: Acceptance Letters 

 
 
Frequently Asked Questions 
 
Q: What grades are part of the outdoor learning program? 

● Students will enter the program as 4th graders and spend two years in 
outdoor education. Moving to middle school in 6th grade.  

 
Q: What is Outdoor Education? 

● Outdoor education is a philosophy of embracing and experiencing the 
outdoors. Students participate in a variety of outdoor learning experiences 
while accessing the RPS curriculum. 



 
Q: Where will the program be located? 

● At Edgerton Trails Elementary School inside the school and at the Outdoor 
Learning property behind the school. 

 
Q: What is the application and selection process: 

● Students must be a current RPS student in the 3rd grade 
● Interested families must fill out and complete an online application  
● Classroom teachers will complete a recommendation form. 
● Student interview 
● Students that meet the criteria will be entered into the lottery 

 
Q: How many students will be admitted? 

● 26 students will be selected through a lottery system to be in the 
inaugural 4th grade class starting in the 2025-26 school year. 

 
Q: Is there a waitlist? 

● There will be a waitlist. If any of the 26 lottery students decline, the next 
student will be invited to enter the program. 

 
Q: What is the curriculum? 

● Students receive district aligned curriculum along with project based 
outdoor learning opportunities.  

 
Q: How much time do students spend outside? 

● This depends on a variety of factors. However, students will spend 50-70% 
of the school year outside.   

 
Q: Does the district provide transportation to and from the Outdoor Education 
Program? 

● TBD-A shuttle opportunity may be an option for students. Once a class list 
is developed the feasibility of assisting with transportation will be 
assessed.  
 

Q: What happens in 5th grade? 



● We plan to add a 5th grade section of outdoor learning in 2026-27.  
Students would remain with their peers and continue outdoor education 
for their fifth grade year.  Students would transition to their assigned 
middle school in 6th grade.  

 
 

 
CLICK TO APPLY 

 
(Make this a button) 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScFQPl0Y4mi_AGBT3EX6IvFG0tdEEDoWILJ4GgefIjMraTx4g/viewform?usp=header
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScFQPl0Y4mi_AGBT3EX6IvFG0tdEEDoWILJ4GgefIjMraTx4g/viewform?usp=header






















































































































Instruction Department 
Mike Ramm, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street 🕐 Rockford, MI 49341 

Phone: 616.863.6556 🕐 Fax: 616.866.1911 

Memorandum 

To: Dr. Steve Matthews 

From: Mike Ramm, Assistant Superintendent of Instruction 

Date: March 5, 2025 

Subject: River Valley Academy Graduation Requirements  

 

Dr. Matthews, 
 

The Rockford Public Schools offers two high school programs, the traditional at Rockford High School, 
and an alternative pathway for students at River Valley Academy.   The state of Michigan sets minimum 
high school graduation requirements (19.5 credits) through the Michigan Merit Curriculum and typically 
local school boards make additions.  Graduation requirements for both RHS and RVA students are 
currently identical at 27.5 credits.  The additional eight credits determined by our school board include 
elective courses and it is within our decision making to require these credits for every RPS graduate. 
 
On Monday, March 10th, Director of River Valley Academy, Jenny Thompson, and I will be asking the RPS 
BOE to adopt a second graduation requirement pathway for only River Valley students that aligns with 
the Michigan Merit Curriculum credit requirements.  Requiring fewer graduation requirements is a 
common practice and currently 76% (13/17) of neighboring districts have a second option for their 
alternative education students. 
 
Students that choose to attend River Valley Academy are often credit deficient.  Completing the 
additional elective credits as required by our one diploma for both high schools has both benefits and 
unintended consequences.  Adding a second option for Rivery Valley students that does not require eight 
elective credits will decrease students that need to be reclassified and/or those that are considering 
dropping out.  The River Valley version of the MMD requirement would also include a career pathway 
elective experience.     
 
Thank you for the opportunity to share this information and I look forward to any questions you or the 
Board of Education may have.  
 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Mike Ramm 

www.rockfordschools.org 



Diploma Options in 
Rockford

An Alternative Proposal

1



River Valley Academy and Rockford 
Adult Education serve students who  
are often credit deficient.  

Students who are motivated and have 
the time to catch up have the 
opportunity to earn a traditional 
Rockford High School diploma.  

                   Opportunity



Kent County Data:

● 76% (13 out of 17) of 
districts in Kent 
County who offer 
Alternative Education 
require fewer credits 
at their alternative 
school, than at their 
traditional high 
school.  
○ (TK has the same 

requirement of 18 
credits for both 
high schools.)

Here is a closer look.

● 9 of the 17 districts 
require only the 
MMC 18 credits for 
alternative high 
school graduation.

● 2 districts require 
19 credits and 2 
require 20. 

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1OUS8vlPiIKFmKbtpnvblvHKt98Czbd68Bm4OQZyRm8Y/edit?usp=sharing


Current Option:
Rockford High 
School Diploma

                                                Total Credits need to graduate:  27.5



Michigan Merit Curriculum:

What is the difference?

Rockford requires an additional .5 
PE credit and an additional .5 
Communications or AP Seminar 
English credit, for a total of 19 
required credits and 8.5 elective 
credits.

English 4 Credits
Math 4 4 Credits
Science 3 Credits
Social Studies 3 Credits
World Language 2 Credits
PE and Health 1 Credit
Visual Performing Arts 1 Credit

18 Total Credits



A diploma is more than a piece of paper.  Of course, a diploma  provides opportunity, 
but it is also is a rite of passage.  Our Rockford Adult Education experience has taught 
us that students without a diploma carry the weight of their failure to do so.  Tears of 
relief are always a part of RAE graduation celebrations!  

                 Value

The GED is a path forward, but for many, 
earning a 
GED doesn’t have the same impact as 
earning a diploma.



Current credit data:

RVA has 34 seniors 
enrolled.  21 of these 
students (62%) have a 
trimester’s worth of 
elective classes left, 2.5 
credits or more.

Rockford Adult Education has an even higher 
percentage of students who would benefit 
from requiring fewer elective courses, while 
maintaining the MMC.



Some students are extremely credit deficient (16 
current seniors have 10 or more credits to earn).

-Some of these students will persevere and continue on for a 5th year.  

-Some will drop out after their first senior year, as they don’t see a realistic 
path to graduation for themselves. 

-Some migrate to other programs 
requiring fewer credits. (Link 
Learning- Success Link)



Our Alternative Proposal:

To support students earning a diploma, we are requesting that 
two diploma tracks be offered, both including the 19 credits 
Rockford requires.  We would also like to include a College and 
Career Ready .5 credit course.  This would mean the Michigan 
Merit Diploma option would require 19.5 credits.

 Rockford High School Diploma

Michigan Merit Diploma      19    .5 (CCR)          19.5
       

Rockford Required Credits    Elective Credits   Total Credits

          19 8.5 27.5



            Guidance

Of course, a well rounded 
education is the ideal.  Students 
will be encouraged to complete 
all the requirements to earn a 
Rockford High School diploma 
(27.5 credits).  

However, if that seems out of 
reach, a Michigan Merit diploma 
may be earned.



What questions might you have?



 
 
 
Proposal: 
 
River Valley Academy proposes that two diploma tracks be offered, both including the 19 
credits Rockford requires.  River Valley Academy would like to include a College and Career 
Ready .5 credit course.  This would mean the Michigan Merit Diploma option would require 
19.5 credits. 
 
 

 Rockford Required 
Credits 

 

Elective Credits 
 

Total Credits 

Rockford High School 
Diploma 

19.0 8.5 27.5 

Michigan Merit Diploma 19.0 .5 19.5 
 

A well rounded education is the ideal.  Students will be encouraged to complete all the 
requirements to earn a Rockford High School Diploma (27.5 credits).   
 
 
 
Rationale: 
 
76% (13 out of 17) of districts in Kent County who offer Alternative Education require fewer 
credits at their alternative school, than at their traditional high school.   
 
RVA has 34 seniors enrolled.  21 of these students (62%) have a trimester’s worth of elective 
classes left, 2.5 credits or more. 
 
Some students are extremely credit deficient (16 current seniors have 10 or more credits to 
earn). 
 

-Some of these students will persevere and continue on for a 5th year.   
 

-Some will drop out after their first senior year, as they don’t see a realistic path to 
graduation for themselves.  

 
-Some will migrate to other programs requiring fewer credits. (Link Learning- Success 
Link) 

 
Having a Michigan Merit Diploma option would create an authentic path to graduation for our 
elective credit deficient River Valley Academy and Rockford Adult Education students, 
providing hope and opportunity to our students. 
 







Finance Department 
Allison Clements, Assistant Superintendent 

 Of Business and Operations 
350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 

Phone: 616.863.6555  Fax: 616.866.1911 

www.rockfordschools.org 

Memorandum
To: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent of Schools 
From: Allison Clements, Assistant Superintendent of Business and Operations 
Date:         March 10, 2025 
Subject: District Workstation Upgrade 

The district regularly needs to replace and upgrade staff and student devices based on the useful life of 
the devices.  This typically occurs every 4 years for Chromebooks, 5 years for Windows Laptop, and 7 
years for desktops.  Keeping with the Rams XII Pillar 5.C.2, Modernizing Infrastructure, the district 
continues to modernize the technology provided to staff and students.  The district workstation upgrade 
also supports Rams XII Pillar 1.A.3 Student Engagement.  

The project overview was presented to the Building and Site Committee on January 30 and the Finance 
Committee on February 19. Communication By Design received bids on March 5.  Attached is the bid 
summary and motion of recommendation to approve the district workstation upgrades.  

The bid summary will be presented to the Rockford Board of Education on Monday, March 10, 2025. The 
recommendation is to approve the bid package from CDW-G LLC in the amount of  $2,062,861.20,         
to be paid out of proceeds of the 2019 bond. 

ATC/jg 

Attachment 



���������������	
��

�����������������������
����������� �!��"�� #��$%�"&'��
����('&)��'*�("�+�,-.�-/-0�
��$'#'&)�1"��2�0.�-/-0�

345675839:;53 �1"��2�,/.�-/-0�

3<5=5>;5?3@7??5AB3 ����CD�����

3EFG;A:>;3 �H��-./I-.JI,K-/�

395B7LG5A3MNNAF6:=3��2���� $2'��1'(�'��

3O8G5A3MNNAF6:=3 �PQQ�� #��Q'R'#���

��S�TU�T��������V�W.�X�T��������SD���T�����DTS�T��P���T��1T�)�

YZY �'[�'\'&�*�&��] ��� R$Q�"#�'�\��2��$'��̂�"�� #��"#&�� #��"���$� [��� #�K�

Y_Y
�� #&(��'&�$ ��C*�&��#�'�[�'\�K�'̀('��'&�"#&��'�'�['&�*�&��Q"��̂�"�� #��]� R�
�*�&&'��� #�1"��2�0.�-/-0K�

YaY
�� �!'&�\��2��2'����'[�'\��'"R�� �'#�(�'�"QQ�R"�'��"Q��#''&'&�\'�'�
��&'#��̂'&K�

YbY
�U'��̂'&��2� R'*  !�.��"$� $�.��$'�"��#%��+��'R�.�1"#"%'R'#���  Q�.�"#&�
�\"��"#�+� $�� #��"�'�"�� (#�'&�] ��] ��"QQ��'̀('��'&�R"�'��"Q��"#&��'�[��'�KK�

YcY
�U'��̂'&��2"���2��'�DQ ['��'�[��'��"�'��#�Q(&'&�"��$"��� ]��2'��2� R'*  !�
�$(��2"�'K�

YdY
�'[�'\'&�$� $ �"Q��] ��"Q�'�#"�'�&'[��'��"���'̀('��'&��#��2'�'̀('���] ��
��� $ �"QK�

345>Fee5G?:;7FG3 fghijkflhmnhof

�X �"$$� ['��2'�� #��"���\��2����CD�����U'�# #���QQ�.��QQ�# ����#��2'�"R (#��
� ]�H��-./I-.JI,K-/��] ������������ �!��"�� #��$%�"&'���� �*'�$"�&�\��2�](#&��
�]� R��2'�-/,p�* #&�$� �''&��YqY

rstuvrwxwryzrwxw



�������������	
��
�	����
����
���
�����	
��	������

�������� !"#$%� &�'��$(
)*+,-./01.2*34

5.678,9*:2;*<2,=3;>:2.2*34,?@A;.+7:,

9.278,B.;<C,DE,FGFD,.2,HH8IG.6,

J KLMNOPQRSSTUVKWXT Y
Z
[
\]̂
_
\̀
a
Z
]b
c̀d
ef
g

h
i
_
j
]k
\l̀
cm
Z
[
n
eY
o
i
_
pg

â
b
kqk̂
q̀h
\̂
\i
b
i
[
\̀
cd
ef
g

r
i
si
]i
[
_
i
t̀
cd
ef
g

Y
Z
[
\]̂
_
\̀
u
v_
i
w
\k
Z
[
t̀
cd
ef
g

u
qi
_
\]
Z
[
k_̀
x
i
]t
kZ
[̀
cd
ef
g

OyWzzV{|U}~yWyR|�~ �T~}y|�V�|X�yTU~ �SXR�V�T~}y|�~ �R~Ry|UV�T~}y|�~

Oy�ST�yV�W�y|�~�
�||��TV�R�T�~R���
�W~T~V�V{�RyTV��|�T

OTU�R�T~

H �9=��, � ) � � � � �DG�EGGG�GG �F�FE����FG �D�EGHD�GG �HFE����GG �HEH��EI�G�GG �FEG�FE��H�FG

F �C*3,)0:*47::,B.<C*47:, 5 5 5 � � � ��I�EDGG�GG ����EFFG�GG ��DE��G�GG �H�EDFG�GG �HE��FEFHG�GG �FE���EI�G�GG�4<36@1727,)*+

I �7C*,�36@027;,�;3+0<2:E,�4<� �FE�IIE�HI���)*+,�.:,;7<*7�7+,. 27;,2C7,+07,+.27,.4+,2*67

�

D

�

�

�

�

HG


	Agenda March 10, 2025 - Copy
	February 10, 2025 Minutes
	In Attendance
	Adoption of Agenda
	Recognition
	Consent Agenda
	New Business
	1. Schools of Choice Resolutions
	• Opt out of Section 105
	• Motion to approve by Andrea Jacobson with support by Christie Ramsey.  Passed unanimously by roll call vote.
	• Opt into Section 105C
	• Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Tricia Anderson.  Passed unanimously by roll call vote.
	• Opt into Kent Collaborative ISD Schools of Choice Program
	• Motion to approve by Jake Himmelspach with support by Tricia Anderson.  Passed unanimously by roll call vote.
	2. Bus Purchase –  Allison Clements explained that as part of the 2019 bond we replace part of our bus fleet yearly.  The recommendation is to replace seven buses through Hoekstra equipment.  Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Andrea...
	3. Abatement Bid Summary.   Allison Clements introduced Shawn Hayward who explained the bids and asked for approval using proceeds from the 2019 bond.  Motion to approve by Tricia Anderson with support by Barb Helms.  Motion carried unanimously.
	4. Summer 2025 Paving Bid – Allison Clements introduced Jaren Gauss who explained the repaving projects that will be done during the summer at Parkside elementary.  There will also be repaving done at the Freshman Center and some repaving will be done...
	5. Network Switches Bid Summary – Allison Clements introduced Chris Meuser who explained the need for switch installation.  Motion to approve by Tricia Anderson with support by Christie Ramsey.  Motion carried unanimously.
	6. Classroom Furniture – Mike Ramm brought a bid for classroom furniture for Roguewood Elementary for approval.  Motion to approve by Christie Ramsey with support by Jarrod Folsom.  Motion carried unanimously.  Mike Ramm also brought a bid to the boar...

	Old Business
	Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present – Public Comment
	Superintendent Remarks
	Dr. Matthews commented on the culture of Parkside and that the proposal is being brought forward because he believes it is in the best interest of the District.  He will be meeting with parents over the next month and he knows it is important to conti...


	BOARD COVER SHEET
	BOARD

	Spring 25-26 Coaches NEW
	Certified Staff Retirements
	Outdoor Learning Packet March 10,2025
	Outdoor Learning Program Expansion Memo 031025
	Memorandum 

	Outdoor Learning March 10, 2025
	Outdoor Learning Informational Page - website
	Outdoor Learning Teacher Referral
	Outdoor Education Application 2025-2026

	Furniture - ERMS & NRMS March 2025
	River Valley Academy Graduation Requirements Packet March 2025
	River Valley Academy Graduation Requirements March 2025.docx
	Memorandum 

	RVA Diploma Options Presentation
	Diploma Option Proposal

	Memo Draft Calendar
	Draft Calendar
	District Workstation Upgrade Packet
	BOE District Workstation Upgrade bid Summary
	Memorandum

	RPS-DistrictWorkstationUpgrades_BRR




